
675 Texas Street

Fairfield, California 94533

www.solanocounty.com

Solano County

Minutes - Final
Board of Supervisors

Erin Hannigan (Dist. 1), Chairwoman

(707) 553-5363

John M. Vasquez (Dist. 4), Vice-Chair

(707) 784-6129

Linda J. Seifert (Dist. 2)

(707) 784-3031

James P. Spering (Dist. 3)

(707) 784-6136

Skip Thomson (Dist. 5)

(707) 784-6130

8:30 AM Board of Supervisors ChambersTuesday, November 24, 2015

CALL TO ORDER
The Solano County Board of Supervisors met on the 24th day of November 

2015 in regular session in the Board of Supervisors' Chambers at the Solano 

County Government Center, 675 Texas Street, Fairfield, California at 8:30 

a.m.  Present were Supervisors Seifert, Spering, Thomson, Vasquez and 

Chairwoman Hannigan.  Chairwoman Hannigan presided.  Also present 

were County Administrator Birgitta E. Corsello and County Counsel Dennis 

Bunting.

ROLL CALL

John M. Vasquez, Erin Hannigan, Linda J. Seifert, James P. Spering and 

Skip  Thomson
Present 5 - 

CLOSED SESSION

The Solano County Board of Supervisors recessed to Closed Session at 

8:31 a.m. to discuss the following matters:

1 15-1110 Conference with Labor Negotiators:

Solano County representatives: Marc Fox, Jeannine Seher, David Pak, Don 

Turko, Georgia Cochran, Birgitta E. Corsello, and Nancy Huston. Employee 

organizations: Teamsters, Local 150 for Unit 1 (Attorneys); SEIU Local 1021 

for Unit 2 (Nurses), Unit 5 (Health and Welfare  Employees), Unit 7 

(Regulatory, Technical and General Services Employees), Unit 8 (General 

Services Supervisors), Unit 9 (Clerical Employees) and Units 82, 87, 89, and 

90 (Extra Help Employees); Solano County Deputy Sheriff’s Association for 

Unit 3 (Law Enforcement Employees) and Unit 4 (Law Enforcement 

Supervisors); Public Employees Union, Local One for Unit 6 (Health and 

Welfare Supervisors) and Unit 16 (Mid-Management Employees); Stationary 

Engineers, Local 39 for Unit 10 (Skilled Craft and Service Maintenance 

Employees); Union of American Physicians and Dentists for Unit 11 

Page 1Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9207


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

(Physicians, Dentists and Psychiatrists); Solano County Probation Peace 

Officer Association for Unit 12 (Probation Employees) and Unit 15 (Probation 

Supervisors); Solano County Sheriff’s Custody Association for Unit 13 

(Correctional Officers); Teamsters, Local 856 for Unit 14 (Correctional 

Supervisors); Solano County Law Enforcement Management Association for 

Unit 17 (Law Enforcement Management) and Unit 18 (Sheriff’s Office 

Management); Professional and Technical Engineers, Local 21 for Unit 19 

(Executive and Senior Management); and unrepresented employees

In-Home Supportive Services Authority representatives: Marc Fox, Gerald 

Huber and Birgitta E. Corsello. Employee organization: SEIU Local 2015

Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 

Property: APN 0032-190-310, 310/360 Beck Ave., Fairfield, California; 

County Negotiators:  Birgitta Corsello, County Administrator, Ron Grassi, 

Principal Management Analyst and Gerald Huber, Health & Social Services 

Director; Negotiating Party: Ron Marlette. Under negotiation: Price and 

terms.

A - MemorandumAttachments:

RECONVENE
This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors reconvened at 9:00 

a.m.  All members were present and Chairwoman Hannigan presided.

REPORT OF ACTION IN CLOSED SESSION (IF APPLICABLE)

County Counsel Dennis Bunting advised that there were no reports from 

Closed Session.

SALUTE TO THE FLAG AND A MOMENT OF SILENCE

This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors continued with the 

Salute to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.

PRESENTATIONS

2 15-1038
Adopt and present a resolution recognizing December 1, 2015 as World 

AIDS Day (Chairwoman Hannigan)

A - Resolution

Adopted Resolution

Minute Order

Attachments:

On motion of Supervisor Spering, seconded by Supervisor Vasquez, the Board 

adopted and presented Resolution No. 2015-218 recognizing December 1, 2015 

as World AIDS Day. So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2015-218

Page 2Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aebb84b8-1d6c-4c04-94ab-20aee6dc3072.doc
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9136
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=af13ad42-6445-4400-8587-6cac8099bc9d.doc
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4cc650da-e8a1-4ec9-9e17-1476873bbfdf.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fc040a6b-f017-432c-8c22-b1069be742d2.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on matters not listed on the agenda but within the subject matter jurisdiction 

of the Board.  The following comments were received:

A) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on pension reform and plans

for local refugees from Syria.

B) Eugene Korte, Vacaville, commented on corporate, economic and

industrial espionage and sabotage.

C) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on a letter from

County Counsel regarding the definition of "public", fairness during the public 

speaking period, a rebate from PG&E regarding light bulbs and wished 

everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.

D) Richard Giddens, Suisun City, commented on a past request for

e-verification of vendors and contractors and immigration into the country 

and state.

ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA

There were no additions to or deletions from the Solano County Board of 

Supervisors' agenda for November 24, 2015.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Seifert, the Board 

approved the agenda of the Solano County Board of Supervisors for November 

24, 2015 as submitted.  So ordered by 5-0 vote.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CONSENT CALENDAR

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on items listed on the Consent Calendar. The following comments were 

received:

A) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on Item 4 regarding

Meeting Attendance Reports of the Board.

County Counsel Dennis Bunting commented on the legal requirements for 

the Board to report meetings.

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello noted that the Board members may 

also report committee meetings that they attended and were compensated 

for that were not considered part of the annual Board appointment process 

and therefore were not on the appointment list.

Page 3Solano County



November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

B) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on Item 11 regarding

write-off of accounts receivable and asked for further explanation of the item. 

Supervisor Spering requested that Item 11 be pulled from the Consent 

Calendar for discussion.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Seifert, the Board 

approved the following Consent Calendar items with the following item being 

removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion:

Item 6  15-1107   Approve a contract with Economic Forensics & Analytics to 

undertake the economic diversification study project funded by the Office of 

Economic Adjustment for an amount not to exceed $435,420 effective 

November 25, 2015 to February 7, 2017; and Authorize the County 

Administrator to execute the contract; and

Item 7  15-1107   Adopt an ordinance to amend Chapter 2, section 2-601, 

subdivision (a) of the Solano County Code, relating to the Airport Land Use 

Commission; and

Item 11  15-1086  Approve the write-off of accounts receivable due to Solano 

County in the amount of $10,621.92 and discharge the Auditor-Controller’s 

Office from further collection efforts and remove these accounts from the 

County’s accounting records (4/5 vote required)

So ordered by 5-0 vote.

CONSENT CALENDAR

3 15-1124 Approve the minutes of the Solano County Board of Supervisors’ meeting of 

November 3, 2015

A - Minutes - November 3, 2015

Minute Order

Attachments:

Approved

4 15-1109 Receive and file the Meeting Attendance Reports from the members of the 

Board of Supervisors as required for compliance with Government Code 

Section 53232.3(d) regarding per diem reimbursements

A - 2015 Appointments

Minute Order

Attachments:

Received and Filed

5 15-1073 Authorize the County’s contribution of $250 from the General Fund 

contribution allocated to District 5 to benefit the Chinese American 

Association of Solano County Scholarship Fund

Minute OrderAttachments:

Approved

Page 4Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9221
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b9960e4-3fd9-404e-83f5-9e4c17f39122.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e31c504e-4e98-47b4-8d86-9978c1224db4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9206
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1330c5a8-240a-4931-91e5-6f67279e57b0.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53753b74-8f3f-4015-a044-4f6d43adf507.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9171
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=34361c59-0587-462f-a331-d84d9857f925.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

8 15-1079 Adopt an ordinance to amend Chapter 2, section 2-601, subdivision (b) of 

the Solano County Code, relating to the Airport Land Use Commission

A - Ordinance

Adopted Ordinance

Minute Order

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Ordinance 2015-1766

9 15-1108 Adopt a resolution to amend the Alphabetical Listing of Classes and Salaries 

to add the classification of Water and Natural Resources Program Manager 

with a monthly salary of $9,101.24 - $11,062.61

A - Resolution

Adopted Resolution

Minute Order

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2015-219

10 15-1129 Adopt a resolution approving successor collective bargaining agreement 

between Solano County and Unit 16 - Mid-Management Employees with the 

Public Employees Union, Local One

A - Unit 16 MOU

B - Resolution

Adopted Resolution

Minute Order

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2015-220

12 15-1102 Adopt a resolution authorizing the Agricultural Commissioner/Sealer of 

Weights and Measures to execute agreements for a net total of $44,182 with 

the California Department of Food and Agriculture and execute revenue 

contract amendments up to 15% over the approved contract amount

A - Resolution

Adopted Resolution

Minute Order

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2015-221

Page 5Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9176
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a27ee5e-2a11-441f-80f7-c499497d18af.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1faa6cbb-7b54-4667-b464-fc154e8e447b.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=be215e43-95ad-4373-b841-98b81ff65f9c.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9205
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a836101c-4b83-43cb-9f7d-15881816b902.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=371ae44e-77dc-4c2f-b772-47d2f1644d69.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5dec7192-6ecb-44d8-8bae-a6ce6062c6d7.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9226
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=507f8d34-cdc7-4375-b618-794934603b45.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0c36228c-4a41-4fe2-9a50-fa537a8c08a0.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7f7691f1-937e-4993-852b-787bf69f3b17.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=edd5f271-8bce-44ff-bff3-e54cd5c44ffa.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9199
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0d7d9861-b468-4a2b-94da-14b961e1804e.doc
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bea35816-e3ef-4fd1-8b70-e28d3689a9eb.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32b44236-243e-4f12-8c53-aac2dfe94792.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

13 15-0896 Approve a contract with Workflow Action for $73,676 to develop an 

electronic repository for Health and Social Services Older and Disabled 

Adults and In Home Supportive Services case records for the period 

beginning November 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016; and Authorize the 

County Administrator to sign the agreement and any amendments within 

budgeted appropriations not to exceed 20% of the original contract. 

A - Contract

Executed Contract

Minute Order

Attachments:

Approved

14 15-1088 Approve a $50,000 contract with Preparative Consulting to provide National 

Incident Management System training with a term of November 25, 2015 

through July 31, 2016; Authorize the County Administrator to execute the 

contract; and Authorize the Sheriff to approve and sign amendments to the 

contract that are within the grant award 

A - Contract

Executed Contract

Minute Order

Attachments:

Approved

15 15-1089 Approve a contract from January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019 with Bay 

Area Community Services for mental health case management services for 

mentally ill inmates returning to the community totaling $1,526,416 funded by 

a combination of MIOCR grant funds, MHSA, Proposition 172, and other 

funding sources; Delegate authority to the County Administrator to execute 

the contract and any amendments including changes to terms and 

conditions, scope of services, and modifications to contract limits not to 

exceed $50,000; and Authorize the Sheriff to execute contract amendments 

which are technical and administrative in nature and remain within budget 

appropriations

A - Contract

Executed Contract

Minute Order

Attachments:

Approved

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

16 15-1071 Approve the appointment of Ruth Meyer to the Airport Land Use 

Commission, representing District 5, for a term to expire May 6, 2019

Minute OrderAttachments:

Approved

Page 6Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=8981
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7776e9e8-65ae-410c-9670-3474d0ee7dd4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3404de45-41da-4ec0-a3c4-21204f93c19d.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=71416cc7-3649-469b-911d-4f18775e2225.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9185
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7fff5d24-651c-4c4a-b127-022236f69a65.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=faca2b8d-09f9-490e-b4b3-8f2e15c9277b.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=018daeff-6117-406b-b27e-b3d56855c9f4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9186
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=14f9ada1-f14a-45a3-bfc5-7a1c9104d7f1.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c6e5172b-6870-4953-a813-8e8ef060d8a1.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d1eacd43-ac7c-439a-92bd-19b927866b91.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9169
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45b3f493-e1da-455b-93ff-7477f9f5e6c5.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

17 15-1112 Confirm the appointments of Jeff Gaborko, M.D. and Viola Lujan as 

commissioners to the Partnership HealthPlan of California Commission and 

extend their existing terms to December 31, 2016

A - Exhibit A

Minute Order

Attachments:

Approved

REGULAR CALENDAR

Rescheduled Consent Items

6 15-1107 Approve a contract with Economic Forensics & Analytics to undertake the 

economic diversification study project funded by the Office of Economic 

Adjustment for an amount not to exceed $435,420 effective November 25, 

2015 to February 7, 2017; and Authorize the County Administrator to 

execute the contract

A - EFA Contract

Executed Contract

Minute Order

Attachments:

Supervisor Seifert noted that a longer explanation or presentation was 

needed for the item and that the proposal refers to the implementation of the 

diversifying economic actions but that the discussion didn't address 

implementation. She then asked when implementation would happen.

Senior Management Analyst James Bezek noted that one deliverable of the 

project would be a database website that can be utilized by staff to show the 

public what the opportunities would be.

Consultant Sean Quinn noted that each item would be implementable, with 

the first part being to look at key sites identified in the first phase.  He further 

noted that of those sites, it would be determined which ones were most 

developable and then work would be done to create marketing plans and 

infrastructure financing plans for the sites identified. He then commented on 

the economic database and website.  Mr. Quinn also commented on the four 

clusters identified in phase one and coming up with what the needs would be 

for those, and then coming up with programs to address those needs. Lastly 

he noted that the final part would be coming up with concrete financing plans 

for economic development.

On motion of Supervisor Seifert, seconded by Supervisor Vasquez, the Board 

approved a contract with Economic Forensics & Analytics to undertake the 

economic diversification study project funded by the Office of Economic 

Adjustment for an amount not to exceed $435,420 effective November 25, 2015 

to February 7, 2017; and Authorize the County Administrator to execute the 

contract. So ordered by 5-0 vote.

Page 7Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9209
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52b0b09f-140b-4b05-b99b-7b88b372e93e.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d6dca82b-f2bd-4185-ba20-0c6da2727f37.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9204
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=23e1a852-f276-4b48-80f3-7021b332659a.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6a81f225-3d01-4472-ae40-7d70493a7024.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b5d14f22-ce87-4468-b641-ff44be86b0a8.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

7 15-1078 Adopt an ordinance to amend Chapter 2, section 2-601, subdivision (a) of 

the Solano County Code, relating to the Airport Land Use Commission

A - Ordinance

Adopted Ordinance

Minute Order

Attachments:

Supervisor Thomson commented on the item noting that the individual in 

question was involved in a number of votes on the Airport Land Use 

Commission and asked if that person's vote would disqualify any action.

County Counsel Dennis Bunting noted that there was more than a majority 

on the votes and always a quorum, therefore his vote would not change the 

outcome.

In response to remarks by Supervisor Thomson, Mr. Bunting commented on 

the actions taken to update the ordinance.

Supervisor Thomson then commented on the staff report in regards to Fair 

Board residency requirements.

Mr. Bunting advised that the Board offices should contact County Counsel 

about qualifications for appointments prior to bringing them forward for 

approval. 

On motion of Supervisor Thomson, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the 

Board approved Ordinance 17605 amending Chapter 2, section 2-601, 

subdivision (a) of the Solano County Code relating to the Airport Land Use 

Commission.  So ordered by 5-0 vote.

Enactment No: Ordinance 2015-1765

11 15-1086 Approve the write-off of accounts receivable due to Solano County in the 

amount of $10,621.92 and discharge the Auditor-Controller’s Office from 

further collection efforts and remove these accounts from the County’s 

accounting records (4/5 vote required)

A - List of Amounts Due

Minute Order

Attachments:

Supervisor Spering asked if anyone had paid the County back for the 

overpayments.

Auditor-Controller Simon Padilla-Scholtens provided the Board with 

information on the collection process to recoup the accounts receivable.

Supervisor Spering requested that staff review the policy to explore 

potentially forgiving these overpayments based on timing or dollar amount.

On motion of Supervisor Spering, seconded by Supervisor Vasquez, the Board 

approved the write-off of accounts receivable due to Solano County in the 

amount of $10,621.92, discharged the Auditor-Controller’s Office from further 

collection efforts and removed these accounts from the County’s accounting 

Page 8Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9175
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=43b6f160-ed00-42ec-8807-53ffb888ba79.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=335acf2d-325d-470a-a03e-af1280defac4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8deaedf2-b707-4ae3-95cc-ffaafffdb0d7.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9183
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9ebdc196-9c55-4548-99eb-c2c02c2cb709.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a4fbc59-9305-4071-a580-1be6b39d06b8.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

records So ordered by 5-0 vote.

18 15-1084 Consider the appointment of a member and alternate from the Solano 

County Board of Supervisors to the California State Association of Counties 

Board of Directors from November 2015 to November 2016

Supervisor Vasquez requested to keep Supervisor Seifert as primary and 

Supervisor Hannigan as alternate.

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the Board 

approved the appointment of Supervisor Seifert as the primary and Supervisor 

Hannigan as the Alternate to the California State Association of Counties 

Board of Directors from November 2015 to November 2016. So ordered by 5-0 

vote. (see Resolution Book)

19 15-1007
Consider and approve the proposed reorganization of the Department of 

Health & Social Services to create a new Medical Services Division; Approve 

a resolution amending the List of Numbers and Classifications of Positions to 

reclassify 1.0 FTE Chief Medical Officer/Deputy Health Officer to 1.0 FTE 

Deputy Director of Health and Social Services/Medical Services Officer, add 

1.0 FTE Health Services Manager (Senior), and delete 1.0 FTE Health 

Services Administrator; and Reaffirm becoming a Community Health Clinic 

and establishing a co-applicant Board to provide oversight to the Family 

Health Services Federally Qualified Health Centers in accordance with 

Health Resources and Service Administration requirements

A - Resolutions

B - Current Organization Chart

C - Public Health Division Proposed

D - Medical Services Division Proposed

E - Presentation

Adopted Resolution Amending Allocation List

Adopted Resolution.Amending the Alphabetical Listing

Minute Order

Attachments:

Health Officer Bela Matyas provided the Board with an overview of the item 

including background on County medical services since 2010 and medical 

services challenges.

Supervisor Seifert asked about the timing on implementing a new financial 

model.

Dr. Matyas noted that it would be done in conjunction with Partnership 

Healthplan and the Department of Health Care Services within the next 

couple of years. 

In response to a question from Supervisor Seifert, Director of Health and 

Social Services Gerald Huber advised that no other counties within the 

Partnership Healthplan are doing this and then noted that the department 

was looking at moving to a capitated managed care model in 2016/2017.

Page 9Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9181
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9103
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a818b80-33c0-4778-bb29-31613aaabd4b.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dba0e4c0-c1bb-4b88-bed1-5eb4c0432d87.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=592f2eea-9c77-46ac-ba68-31dcd7efee96.doc
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=344a8650-e04d-438f-9795-ad77f8c74930.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=80955761-1692-4a28-92d2-1955e173480f.pptx
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=90d58cdb-3817-409f-b44c-fff5c8dc9bc4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c7f68763-c9d0-455f-bfac-18f7ea6b52f3.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4cc8f9c6-59f0-44ea-8665-f165589cfb11.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Dr. Matyas commented on home based care and capitated managed care. 

He then continued to provide the Board with an overview of public health 

challenges, the current and proposed organizational structures for the Public 

Health and Medical Services divisions.

Chairwoman Hannigan asked if mobile clinics would continue to operate.

Dr. Matyas noted that all programs would continue but that the divisions 

would be more focused on their specific services. 

Supervisor Spering asked for more information on social determinants and 

asked if there was a connection to mobile clinics.

Dr. Matyas noted that yes there was and that the focus now needed to be on 

diet and exercise and access to food. 

Dr. Matyas then provided more information on the mobile clinics.

Supervisor Spering asked about ways to measure whether a difference was 

being made.

Dr. Matyas noted that there was a need for better access and assessment of 

data and that staff was actively working on getting access to data that would 

enable assessment and changes to an individual's program needs.

Mr. Huber commented on data indications that preventative care would 

create better outcomes.

Supervisor Spering asked if people had mobility challenges.

Dr. Matyas noted that a disproportionate share of individuals did have 

mobility issues.

Supervisor Spering commented on the need to identify and get 

transportation help to these individuals.

Mr. Huber noted that the department was beginning to work with the local 

transportation authority to identify transportation needs for individuals.

Supervisor Spering commented on the need to have some type of method in 

place to identify individuals and programs that needed to utilize transit 

services.

Chairwoman Hannigan suggested layering GIS data to identify hot spots 

where those program and service needs are.

Dr. Matyas noted technological and policy challenges in blending the GIS 

data, noting they were actively involved in resolving these challenges.  He 

also noted that the department already had several dozen layers and that 

they were working to increase this and interaction with clients as well.

Page 10Solano County



November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Chairwoman Hannigan commented on Blue Zones.

Supervisor Spering commented on hotspots in GIS noting that the data was 

needed in order for transit partners to adjust and assist with providing 

transportation.

Supervisor Thomson noted that his office was working on getting mobility 

assistance to Rio Vista.  He noted that residents there don't know about 

programs and services that the County provides and commented on future 

activities to address this.

Supervisor Seifert commented on transportation importance noting that it 

may be easier to have resources closer to people and then commented on 

the challenges of solving food desert issues.

Dr. Matyas noted that it was a complex issue with some services requiring 

transit needs and others needing resources. He advised that having food 

available locally was better for an individual with transportation needs than 

traveling a long way to bring food back. He also commented on individuals’ 

physical activity and noted that some needed services to be centralized and 

some needed transit to the services.

Supervisor Seifert commented on coordinated efforts to look at these type of 

issues and suggested that a resource team be put together to look at 

broader solutions for all the different issues. 

Dr. Matyas commented on what infrastructure was in place to do this.

Supervisor Vasquez commented on building healthy communities and the 

importance of having the cities and schools involved as well.

Mr. Huber commented on strategic alignment and the role of public health 

and medical services.

Supervisor Seifert thanked staff for the new model and the work being done 

by the department’s leadership and staff.

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on this matter and the following comments were received:

A) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on the financial aspects of

the program, the size of the organization growing, containing costs to the 

budget, and having these types of programs provided by charity or other 

organizations in order to contain government growth.

On motion of Supervisor Seifert, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the Board 

approved the reorganization of the Department of Health & Social Services to 

create a new Medical Services Division; Approved Resolution 2015-222 and 

Resolution 2015-223 amending the List of Numbers and Classifications of 

Positions to reclassify 1.0 FTE Chief Medical Officer/Deputy Health Officer to 

1.0 FTE Deputy Director of Health and Social Services/Medical Services Officer, 

add 1.0 FTE Health Services Manager (Senior), and delete 1.0 FTE Health 

Page 11Solano County



November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Services Administrator; and Reaffirmed becoming a Community Health Clinic 

and establishing a co-applicant Board to provide oversight to the Family 

Health Services Federally Qualified Health Centers in accordance with Health 

Resources and Service Administration requirements.  So ordered by 5-0 vote.

Enactment No: Resolution 2015-222 and Resolution 2015-223

20 15-1104 Receive a report from County Superintendent of Schools Jay Speck from the 

Solano County Office of Education regarding the “State of the Schools” for 

the 2015-2016 school year, in compliance with the Williams Case Settlement

A - Presentation

Minute Order

Attachments:

County Superintendent of Schools Jay Speck provided the Board with an 

overview of the "State of the Schools" report for the 2015-2016 school year.

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on this matter and the following comments were received:

A) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City commented on basic skills of reading and

writing and maintenance on schools.

Mr. Speck commented on bonds for school facilities and challenges of facility 

upkeep and noted that many buildings are temporary buildings.

Chairwoman Hannigan commented on a recent attempt by Vallejo to pass a 

school bond.

B) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on students' test

grades being very low.

Received

21 15-1094 Receive a status update on the Farmbudsman Program serving Solano and 

Yolo counties

A - Presentation

Minute Order

Attachments:

Senior Management Analyst James Bezek introduced Farmbudsman 

Michelle Stephens and noted that she had won the Small Business 

Development Center's Excellence in Economic Impact Performance for 

2014.

Ms. Stephens provided the Board with an overview of the role of the 

Farmbudsman, outreach activities, impacts on businesses and jobs, impact 

on processing, impact on jobs and investment, the Solano Grown grant 

administration.

Chairwoman Hannigan congratulated Ms. Stephens.

Page 12Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9201
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52c273ef-362a-4148-b493-0f2fa617d371.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32ea4efc-8b99-4eba-aaac-7c931356f932.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9191
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=77a244a4-5909-42eb-82dc-c92319d4cc89.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd9a0052-a23e-41c3-8042-2b1468340387.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Supervisor Vasquez noted the importance of the Farmbudsman program 

and thanked Ms. Stephens for her work.

Supervisor Seifert asked if the program was unique.

Ms. Stephens noted that Sonoma and Marin counties had part time 

Farmbudsman programs through the University of California Cooperative 

Extension and that San Mateo also had a program that was hired by the 

county but also affiliated with NRCS (National Resources Conservation 

Service).

Supervisor Seifert suggested that the County apply for the next CSAC 

(California State Association of Counties) Challenge Award for this program.

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on this matter and the following comments were received:

A) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on the Board's

knowledge of the program and whether it was working.

Supervisor Seifert noted that the program was very familiar to the Board and 

that Ms. Stephens updated the Board members individually as well.  She 

noted that Ms. Stephens also attends the Farm Bureau meetings and 

Agricultural Advisory Committee meetings.

Supervisor Vasquez commented on the history of the program and advised 

that he was in constant contact with the farming community and noted that 

they appreciated the Farmbudsman program.

Supervisor Spering commented on Priority Conservation Areas and noted 

that the program supports those areas and the farmers.  He also commented 

on the successful model of bringing fresh products to the community.

Ag Commissioner/Sealer of Weights and Measures Jim Allan commented on 

the number of times growers actually go to the county for planning. He noted 

that growers interact with Ms. Stephens as needed and were appreciative of 

the program.

Received

22 15-1101 Accept the Audit Report of the Solano County Fair for the year ended 

December 31, 2014

A - SCF Final Audit Report

B - SCF Financial Results

Minute Order

Attachments:

Auditor-Controller Simona Padilla-Scholtens introduced the item.

Deputy Auditor-Controller Kirk Starkey provided the Board with an overview 

of the Audit Report of the Solano County Fair for the year ended December 

31, 2014.

Page 13Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9198
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=873a43da-45ff-45b5-bad7-8befb42f92a0.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d5507dcb-9c40-4feb-b37e-c06eb63edbfc.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fabe474d-5f32-4c97-9df8-864169b9c94f.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Ms. Padilla-Scholtens provided the Board with information on the continued 

operating losses of the fair.

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on this matter and the following comments were received:

A) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on the source of the

funds that were being calculated as a loss.

Fair General Manager Steve Pierce noted that the $4.5 million was 

accounting money representing primarily depreciation.  

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello provided the Board with information on 

a prior subsidy and capital financing funding that used to come from the 

state and had been eliminated in the economic downturn. She then 

commented on the challenges of the Fair as a result of the lost funding, 

noting that all fairs were experiencing challenging times.

Supervisor Spering noted that there was a plan being looked at and that the 

issue was not going ignored.

On motion of Supervisor Thomson, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the 

Board accepted the Audit Report of the Solano County Fair for the year ended 

December 31, 2014. So ordered by 5-0 vote.

23 15-1106 Consider approving the Solano County Fair Association’s CY2016 budget 

totaling $2,833,883, including capital expenses; Approving the extension of 

the term of the Agreement for the Management and Operation of the Solano 

County Fairgrounds to expire January 31, 2019; Authorizing the SCFA to 

pursue federal and state grant and other revenues and delegating to the 

County Administrator approval of associated applications

A - SCFA CY2016 Proposed Budget

B - Links to Additional Information

C - Presentation

Minute Order

Attachments:

Fair General Manager Steven Pierce provided the Board with an overview of 

the Solano County Fair Association's CY2016 budget including 2015 

activities, projected CY2015 results by activity, use of 2015 projected net 

profit, and proposed rate changes.

Chairwoman Hannigan asked how many RV parking spots were at the 

fairgrounds.

Mr. Pierce noted that there were over 80 spots available.

Supervisor Thomson asked what the vacancy rate was on the RV spots.

Mr. Pierce noted that the vacancy rate was about 15% outside of the fair and 

show events.

Page 14Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9203
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=226e2e15-29d3-4ac8-90f8-562dec612465.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7b871050-fd5a-404e-9bcd-f7f1beef8fe6.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c7587fc2-808a-4a19-b6dd-cd7422265ae6.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef48b367-ce9c-448a-a61f-eb11f3348de4.pdf


November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Mr. Pierce continued to provide the Board with information including 

proposed rate changes, personnel changes and wages, Appreciation Days, 

capital projects and fixed asset purchases.

Chairwoman Hannigan asked if the County had old vehicles that could be 

used at the fair.

Ms. Corsello noted that she would ask Fleet Services to assist Mr. Pierce 

with finding a utility vehicle.

Mr. Pierce continued to provide the Board with information including use of 

.33 Funds for 2016, the Annual Solano County Fair revenues and 

expenditures, Youth Ag Day revenues and expenditures and facility rentals 

revenues and expenditures.

Supervisor Seifert asked about rental cancellations.

Mr. Pierce noted that not every promoter did a good job of picking dates for 

their event or weren't able to follow through on their rental.

Mr. Pierce continued to provide the Board with information including Solano 

Race Place revenues and expenditures.

Supervisor Seifert asked why there was a decline in attendance at the Race 

Place.

Mr. Pierce advised that the audience was aging out and the market was 

declining.

Mr. Pierce continued to provide the Board with information including 

electronic sign revenues and expenditures, other sources of revenues and 

expenditures, administration, maintenance and guest safety expenditures, 

2016 proposed budget by activity, and pending issues on Unrestricted 

Reserve and 2016 cash flow.

Supervisor Thomson commented on concerns with the loss of money for the 

fair over the years and how much longer it could continue.  He noted that he 

would be supportive of another year of operating the fair.

Supervisor Seifert asked about the next Solano360 report and noted it would 

be helpful to have that report along with the fair budget. She then 

commented on the challenges of the fair and the efforts to enhance it. 

Mr. Pierce noted that the new strategy was to operate the fair in a smart way 

for longer instead of operating extravagantly and potentially having to stop 

operations. 

Supervisor Seifert commented on the amount of gun shows and the need for 

more educational and positive events as well as a means of better outreach.

Page 15Solano County



November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Mr. Pierce noted that part of the challenge was the nature of the facilities 

themselves that caused constraints on the different types of events that 

could take place.  He also commented on the Solano360 project and noted 

that they were waiting to see what could come of that.

Chairwoman Hannigan commented on the Solano360 project and 

commended Mr. Pierce and the Solano County Fair Association Board 

members on their efforts.

Supervisor Vasquez commented on the challenges of all fairs in the state to 

keep going and noted the importance of fairgrounds to communities. 

Supervisor Spering commented on Solano360 and noted that it was not the 

savior of the fair. He noted that there needed to be a review done of what 

the fair vision should be and how to facilitate that vision.

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the public to address the Board 

on this matter and the following comments were received:

A) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on ending the fair, keeping

gun shows as events, the cost of the fair audit, and maintenance 

requirements on the fairgrounds if it was shut down. 

On motion of Supervisor Seifert, seconded by Supervisor Vasquez, the Board 

approved the Solano County Fair Association’s CY2016 budget totaling 

$2,833,883, including capital expenses; Approved the extension of the term of 

the Agreement for the Management and Operation of the Solano County 

Fairgrounds to expire January 31, 2019; Authorized the SCFA to pursue federal 

and state grant and other revenues and delegated to the County Administrator 

approval of associated applications. So ordered by 5-0 vote.

Enactment No: 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND REPORTS ON MEETINGS

Chairwoman Hannigan invited members of the Board to make comments or 

reports on meetings. The following comments were received:

A. Supervisor Seifert requested that this meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors be adjourned in memory of Bernice Arrostuto, 

mother-in-law of Christina Arrostuto.

B. Supervisor Seifert requested that this meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors be adjourned in memory of Flordelis Castro Asis Aliga, 

an active member of the Vallejo community.

C. Supervisor Hannigan requested that this meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors be adjourned in memory of Jean Raahauge, an active 

member of the Vallejo community.

D. Supervisor Hannigan also announced a candlelight vigil taking place in 

Page 16Solano County



November 24, 2015Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Vallejo for World Aids Day and free Thanksgiving meals being hosted by 

various agencies.

ADJOURN:
This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors adjourned at 11:45 

a.m. in memory of Bernice Arrostuto, Floredelis Castro Asis Aliga and Jean 

Raahauge.  Next meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors will be 

December 8, 2015 at 8:30 a.m., Board Chambers, 675 Texas Street, 

Fairfield, California.

________________________________

ERIN HANNIGAN, Chairwoman

Solano County Board of Supervisors

BIRGITTA E. CORSELLO, Clerk

Solano County Board of Supervisors

By ______________________________

Jeanette Bellinder, Chief Deputy Clerk

Page 17Solano County




